
 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact Alex 
Daynes on 01733 452447. 
 

 

ABABABAB    
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
MEETING STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

DATE: WEDNESDAY 4 NOVEMBER 2009 
 

TIME: 7.00 pm 
 

VENUE: FORLI ROOM - TOWN HALL 
 

CONTACT: Alex Daynes 
Telephone: 01733 452447 
e-mail address alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

Despatch date: 27 October 2009 

 
 

AGENDA  

 PAGE NO 

 
1. Apologies 

 
 

2. Declaration of Interests (if any) 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda. Members must 
also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any 
items under consideration. 

 

3. Monitoring Officer's Report 
 

1 - 10 

 To receive and comment on a report form the Monitoring Officer 
 

 

4. Agenda Planning 
 

11 - 12 

 To agree upon  the work programme and future agenda items. 
 

 

5. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 9 December 2009 (Provisional) or 13 January 2010.  
 

Public Document Pack



 
MEMBERS OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Councillors: Boast (Chairman), Smith (Vice-Chairman), Whiles, Fearon, Menendez, A Miners,  
N Khan, S Scott, D Fower, Batty and G Murphy 
 
Subs: Councillors: Z Hussain, R Dobbs, Nesbitt, N Sandford, C W Swift and S Goldspink 
 
 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 



 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

4 NOVEMBER 2009 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Monitoring Officer Helen Edwards Solicitor to the Council Tel. 452539 

Report author Kim Sawyer Head of Legal Services and Deputy Monitoring 
Officer 

Tel: 452361 

 
REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

1. To consider the proposed service standards for the Monitoring Officer annexed to this report. 
2. To decide whether to receive regular notice from the Monitoring Officer of any complaints 

made and considered by the Standards Committee. 

 
1. CONTENTS OF REPORT 

 

1.1 This report contains the following items for consideration: 

• Service level standards for the Monitoring Officer 

• Review of previous work programmes for this Committee 
 
 
2. SERVICE LEVEL STANDARDS 

 

2.1 In considering the work programme for this Committee recommended to its last meeting, 
the members of the Committee asked that this further report be submitted outlining 
appropriate service standards for the role of the Monitoring Officer.  The Committee is 
mindful of the need to process all complaints expeditiously and has concluded that clear 
guidelines for processing complaints will ensure that matters do not become delayed.  In 
addition the Committee has indicated that it wishes to raise its profile within the Council 
and suitable service standards are key to this process.  Draft questions for a questionnaire 
are attached at appendix 1. 

 
2.2 The Monitoring Officer has suggested the service standards in the attached document at 

appendix 2.   

 

 

3. WORK PROGRAMME REVIEW 

 

The Deputy Monitoring Officer has reviewed the Standards Committee minutes for the previous 18 
months.  This has demonstrated three outstanding actions for this Committee: 
 

• Training for members of the Council 

• CRB checks review 

• Local Democracy week 
 
3.2 Training for all elected members of the Council was proposed in September 2008.  On the 

5 October it was reported back to this Committee that the proposed training had been 
postponed for lack of interest.  At the last meeting of this Committee it was suggested that 
training should be arranged at the next suitable opportunity.  The Monitoring Officer has 
added this to the work programme  

 

1



3.3 A review of the CRB check has been timetabled for January 2010 in accordance with the 
requirements of the Committee. 

 
3.4 Members of this Committee had hoped to play an active role in Local Democracy Week 

scheduled for October.  This however did not transpire.  The Standards Committee 
together with the Monitoring Officer will actively aim to participate in this event next year.  

  
4. CONSIDERATIONS 
 

To decide whether the proposed service standards are appropriate, it is important for the 
Committee to: 

 

• understand the role of the Monitoring Officer, and  

• be aware that the Monitoring Officer is one part of the job description of the Solicitor 
to the Council who fulfils an important strategic role in assisting the Council to meet 
its corporate objectives. 

 
4.2 The role of Monitoring Officer has been in existence since the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989.  It’s early, and continuing function, is to report to Council on any action in 
breach of the law or statutory code and where there is maladministration or injustice.  In 
2000, with the introduction of the Code of Conduct, the role of the Monitoring Officer was 
extended to also play a key role in issues of probity amongst Members and officers of the 
Council. 

 
4.3 The Monitoring Officer has a further role to play in supporting the executive arrangements, 

also introduced by the Local Government Act 2000, with primary responsibility for drafting 
and reviewing the Constitution.  As such the Monitoring Officer is responsible for advising 
officers and members on interpretation of the constitutional rules. 

  
4.4 The Monitoring Officer also has responsibility for administering the access to information 

rules which govern the committee process.   
 
4.5 Therefore in addition to the support provided to the Standards Committee, the Monitoring 

Officer also plays a vital role in the internal governance of the Council.  The service 
standards proposed by this report relate only to the role the Monitoring Officer has in 
supporting the actions of this Committee. 

 
Statutory obligations 
4.6 There are specific statutory obligations placed upon the Standards Committee by the Local 

Government Act 2000.  It is important to be aware of these statutory duties, as they set out 
what must be done rather than what may be done.  When setting service standards it is 
important that any timescales linked to the statutory duties are observed at all times. 

 
4.7 The primary obligations of the Standards Committee are: 

• To deal with complaints made against members of the Council and the parishes 

• To advise and train members of the Council and the parishes 
 
4.8 The process for dealing with complaints is set out in the Standards Committee (England) 

Regulations 2008.  It is important to note that there are no timescales associated with the 
processing of complaints within the Regulations.  It was originally intended to include a 
regulation to have a complaint assessed within 20 working days of receipt however this now 
appears only in the Standards for England guidance on “Local Assessment of Complaints” 
and does not therefore have statutory force. 

 
4.9 If the Standards Committee concludes that it should take no further action on the complaint 

the complainant can request a review of that decision.  Any review must be held within 
three months of the written request. 

 
4.10 The Monitoring Officer has an obligation to report back to the Committee within three 

months on any matter referred for ‘other action’.  This refers to the alternative actions which 

2



the Standards Committee might think are an appropriate response to a complaint if it does 
not wish to investigate.  This usually involves training or mediation. 

 
4.11 There is a requirement for any hearing following an investigation to be set down within 3 

months of the investigating report being concluded or “as soon as reasonably practicable”.  
Generally where investigations are straightforward and the matter does not involve any or 
very few witnesses it will be possible to arrange a hearing within 3 months of the report.  
However considering that the Standards Committee now has to arrange a pre-adjudication 
meeting prior to any hearing, it will not always be possible for the three month time limit to 
be adhered to, particularly if there are points of law to be considered or where the Member 
asks for a number of witnesses to attend.  In cases where it is not going to be possible to 
adhere to the three month time limit the Monitoring Officer should write to all concerned 
explaining the reason for any delay (and where necessary copy in Standards for England to 
that correspondence). 

 
Non- statutory obligations 
4.12 Guidance issued by Standards for England offers suggested deadlines for a number of 

procedures: 

• Assessment hearings within 20 working days of complaint 

• Decision notices within 5 working days of meeting 

• Referrals back from Standards for England within 20 working days 

• Investigation concluded within 6 months 

• Conclude the pre-hearing process at least two weeks before the hearing 

• Short written decision issued on the day of the hearing and full written decision 
within two weeks 

 
Good practice 
4.13 In addition to the above requirements, the Monitoring Officer is also bound by general 

customer service standards relevant to all Council officers.  These are to answer telephone 
calls within 20 seconds, answer written correspondence within 10 working days and emails 
within 1 working day.  The proposed service standards attempt to mirror the corporate 
standards in relation to the complaints process and general dealings with the Standards 
Committee. 

 
4.14 It is considered that in relation to the complaints process the Committee may find it useful to 

receive regular reports on the progress of any complaints received by the Monitoring 
Officer.  The complaints will be anonymised to preserve confidentiality.   

 
4.15 A complaints grid is also attached to this report at appendix 3 as a proposal for 

consideration by the Committee. 
 
4.16 The service standards deal only in general terms with other matters which come before the 

Standards Committee.  This is the purpose in setting a work programme for the Committee 
as it permits the Monitoring Officer to consider what actions the Committee might wish to 
take to increase its profile within the authority and set aside appropriate resources to that 
workload.  The Committee must recognise that this is non statutory work and unlike other 
Committees, it does not have a number of officers feeding into the work of the Committee.  
The work programme will therefore help to set an agenda for the Committee meetings but 
will also be subject to review at each meeting in recognition that the Monitoring Officer has 
a number of competing priorities to deliver. 

 
 
5. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

 

The purpose of the report is to engender public confidence in the statutory obligations 
placed upon the Standards Committee by setting clear expectations of the Standards 
Committee and the Monitoring Officer. 

 
 

3



6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

6.1 To provide appropriate levels of service to resource the work of the Committee. 
 

 

7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

7.1 None, as this report was at the request of the Committee. 
 
 
8. IMPLICATIONS 
 

These are dealt with in the body of the report. 
 
 
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
Local Government Act 2000 and associated Regulations. 
 
Guidance issued by Standards for England. 

4



QUESTONNAIRE FOR COUNCILLORS  

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE – WHAT IS IT? 

 

Please complete openly and honestly and return to Alex Daynes, Democratic 
Services, Town Hall, Peterborough, PE1 1HG (or drop off next time you are at the 
Town Hall). 
 
Please answer all questions with a number 1, 2, 3, 4 or 5. 
 

1. Are you aware that there is a Standards 
Committee in the Council? 1 = not aware, 
5 = very aware. 

 

 

2. Are you familiar with the role of and work 
of the Standards Committee? 1 = no, not 
at all, 5 = very familiar. 

 

 

3. Are you aware of the range of sanctions 
the Standards Committee can impose at 
hearings? 1 = no, not at all, 5 = very 
aware. 

 

 

4. Are you familiar with the Members’ Code of 
Conduct in the Constitution? 1 = no, not at 
all, 5 = very familiar. 

 

 

5. Do you know the political make up of 
members on the Standards Committee? 1 
= no, not at all, 5 = yes, fully. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



SERVICE STANDARDS 
 
The Monitoring Officer will ensure that: 
 

• All written complaints are responded to within 10 working days in accordance 
with the Council’s customer service standards 

 

• Subject to administrative arrangements, all assessment hearings will be 
heard within 20 working days of receipt of the complaint 

 

• All complaints are logged on the Council’s case management system (Civica) 
with each file accorded its own individual reference 

 

• All complaint files will be anonymised to protect identity and preserve 
confidentiality 

 

• Decision notices will be drafted for review by the clerk to the relevant Sub-
Committee within 3 working days and issued within 5 working days of the 
decision (subject to response from the Sub-Committee members) 

 

• Progress of complaints will be reported to the Standards Committee each 
month  

 

• Any investigations lasting longer than 6 months will be reported to the 
Committee, with reasons where this does not breach confidentiality 

 

• All concluded investigation reports will be set down for hearing by the 
Adjudication Sub-Committee within 20 working days (subject to administrative 
arrangements) 

 

• All hearings will be set down within 3 months of the conclusion of the 
investigation report subject to a satisfactory period for the pre-hearing 
process  

 

• Any delay in these service standards will be notified to all parties in the matter 
explaining the delay where this does not breach confidentiality 

 

• All telephone requests will be responded to within 20 seconds in accordance 
with the Council’s customer service standards.   

 

• Where the Monitoring Officer is out of the office the matter will be responded 
to by the Deputy Monitoring Officers where no conflict of interest arises 

 

• Any emails of voicemail messages for the Monitoring Officer will be dealt with 
upon return to the office.  Where that absence arises from leave, 
arrangements will be made for another officer to deal with those queries. 

 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



STANDARDS COMMITTEE: COMPLAINT MONITORING 

2009/2010 

 

 

COMPLAINT No. 

 

 

DATE 

RECEIVED 

 

DATE 

ASSESSED 

 

ASSESSMENT 

OUTCOME 

 

INVESTIGATION 

BEGUN 

 

INVESTIGATION 

DEFERRED 

 

INVESTIGATION 

CONCLUDED 

 

PRE- 

HEARING 

 

HEARING 

 

OUTCOME 

 

 

 

 

        

Comments: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMPLAINT No. 

 

 

DATE 

RECEIVED 

 

DATE 

ASSESSED 

 

ASSESSMENT 

OUTCOME 

 

INVESTIGATION 

BEGUN 

 

INVESTIGATION 

DEFERRED 

 

INVESTIGATION 

CONCLUDED 

 

PRE- 

HEARING 

 

HEARING 

 

OUTCOME 

 

 

 

 

        

Comments: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9



1
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



WORK PROGRAMME FOR STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting date:        Item no: 
 

SCHEDULE OF REGULAR ITEMS 
 
Item Frequency Date of next review 

 

• Review of complaints 
 
 

  

• Summary of new guidance  
 
 

  

• Conference feedback 
 
 

  

• Annual review of work programme (reported to Council) 
 
 

  

• Review of Constitution policies: 
 

• +  Planning 

• +  Code of Conduct and Member / Officer Protocol  

• +  Monitoring Office Protocol 
 

  

• Training (Standards Committee and Council) 
 
 

  

• Report on quarterly and annual returns 
 
 

  

• Review terms of reference of Standards Committee 
 
 

  

 

 

1
1



WORK PROGRAMME FOR STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting date:        Item no: 
 

SPECIFIC TASKS 
 
 

 

Task  
 

Assign dates  

• Monitoring Officer protocol and service level agreement 
 
 

  

• Review local assessment criteria (official capacity / delay) 
 
 

  

• Assessment / Review / Hearing handbook 
 
 

  

• Review processes and procedures for complaints 
 
 

  

• Report on indemnity for Members of Standards Committee 
 
 

  

• Appointment of Parish Council Members  
 
 

  

 

1
2


	Agenda
	3 Monitoring Officer's Report
	Appendix 1 - QUESTONNAIRE FOR COUNCILLORS
	Appendix 2 - SERVICE STANDARDS
	Appendix 3 - COMPLAINT monitoring

	4 Agenda Planning

